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UN lTED STATES 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 


REGION IX 


In the mattcr of ) U.S. EPA Docket No. 

) RCRA-9-20 11- {)O (4 
TXT Technology, Inc. ) 

) CONSENT AGREEMENT AND 
) FINAL ORDER PURSUANT TO 
) 40 C.F.R. SECTIONS 22.\3 AND 

Respondent. ) 22. 18 

--------------------------) 

CONSENT AGREEMENT 

A. 	 PRELlMINARY STATEMENT 

I. 	 This is a civil administrative enforcement action instituted pursuant to Section 3008(a)(I) 

of the Resource ConseJVation aod Recovery Act ("RCRA"), as am.ended, 42 U.s.c. § 
6928(a)( 1), and the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative 
Assessment of Civil Penalties, Issuance of Compliance or Corrective Action Orders, and 

the Revocation, Termination or Suspension of Permits, 40 Code of Federal Regulations 
("C.F.R.") Part 22, as revised by 64 Fed . Reg. 141 (July 23,1999). Complainant is the 

United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region IX ("EPA"). Respondent is 

TXT Technology, Inc. ("TXT" or "Respondent"). 

2. 	 Respondent is a California corporation which holds itself out as a recycler of used 

electronic equipment and parts . 

3, The violation addressed herein, unauthorized exportation of hazardous waste, poses a 
substantial risk of exposure to humans or other environmental receptors to the hazardous 
materials such as lead, cadmium, and mercury found in CRTs, and failure to notify the 
EPA of the export bas a substantial adverse effect rendering enforcement of the CRT rule 
impossible as well as threatening international cooperation by preventing the EPA from 
noti fying the recipient country in compliance with 40 C.F.R. § 261.39(a)(5)(iv). 

4. 	 This Consent Agreement and Final Order pursuant to 40 C.P.R. Sections 22.13 and 22. J8 
(CAJFO), concludes this proceeding, wherein EPA alleges that Respondent failed to 
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§ 
is in violation 

B. 

5. 	 corporation is a as defined in 40 C.F.R. § 10. 

6. 	 is a "primary as defined in 40 CF.R. § 1. 

7. 	 March l7, 2009 and March 31,2009, Respondent 909 and 703 
monitors containing tubes ("CRTsH) to 

8. monitors shipped by UV""''''"' consli lute "hazardous waste" as defined in 40 
260.10 and 261.3, and 1004(5) of RCRA j § 6903(5). 

9. 	 computer monitors contain an average of four pounds and studies show that 

leach lead al levels ty above the toxicity characteristic regulatory level 

to fy lead-containing wastes as hazardous (40 § 1 In addition, 
often contain mercury, 

10. 	 RCRA. 
regulations 

regulations were 

II. 3008 of RCRA, 42 U 
requiring compliance 

of Subtitle C of 

12. Administrator has ~~.,~""~. 

to the EPA Regional 

to the Director of 

Unauthori7,ed 

13. 	 I through 12 

in their 

and arsenic. 

EPA to 

to prevent the unauthorized export hazardous waste. 

40 CF.R. §§ 

§ 6928, authorizes the EPA Administrator to issue 

or within a specified time for violation ofany 
3001 ofRCRA U.S.C. § 6921, 

under Section 3008 ofRCRA, 42 U.S.C. 

redelegated this 

Management Division. 

of Hazardous Waste 

are 	 as I f they were 

14. 	 40 FR. § 262.52 prohibits of hazardous waste unless (a) notification of the EPA 
to export in accordance with 40 C.ER. § 262.53 has provided, (b) the 

2 



receiving country has consented to accept the hazardous waste, (c) a copy of the EPA 
Acknowledgment of Consent to the shipment accompanies the hazardous waste shipment 
and, unless exported by rail, is attached to the manifest (or shipping paper for expons by 
water (bulk shipment), and (d) the hazardous waste shipment conforms to the terms of the 
receiving country's written consent as reflected in the EPA Acknowledgment of Consent. 

15. 	 Respondent exported two shipments of CRT monitors to Haiphong, Vietnam. The 
shipments included 909 units on March J7, 2009 and 703 units on March 31,2009. 

16. 	 Respondent did not provide no1ification to EPA of its intent to export the CRTs as 
required by 40 C.F.R. § 261.39(a)(5) or, alternatively, 40 C.F.R. § 262.53. 

17. 	 The receiving country did not consent to the intended expon, and Respondent did not 
receive from EPA an Acknowledgcment of Consent, as required by 40 C.F.R. § 261.39(a) 
(5)(v) or alternatively, 40 C.F.R. § 262.53. 

18. 	 No Acknowledgement of Consent to Export was provided by the Respondent in response 
to the EPA's request, pursuant to 42 U.S.c. § 3007(a), for "copies of shipping papers 
associated with the CRT shipment." 

J9. Therefore, EPA alleges that Respoodent exported hazardous waste without authorization 
in violation of 40 c.YR. § 262.52. 

D. CIVIL PENALTY 

20. 	 Section 3008(g) of RCRA, 42 U,S.c. § 6928(g), as adjusted by the Federal Civil 
Penalties Innation Adjustment Act of 1990, 28 U,S.c. § 246l and the Debt Collection 
Improvement Act of 1996, 31 U.S.c. § 3701, (see 61 Fed. Reg. 69360 (Dec. 31, 1996)), 
authorizes a civil penalty of up to THIRTY-SEVEN THOUSAND, FIVE HUNDRED 
DOLLARS ($37,500) per day for violations of Subtitle C of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 6921 et 

~., occurring after January 1, 2009. Based upon the facts alleged herein and upon those 

factors which EPA must consider pursuant to Section 3008(a)(3) ofRCRA, 42 U.S.c. ' 
6928(a)(3), and the RCM Civil Penalty Policy, including tbe seriousness of Ihe 

violations, any good faith efforts by Respondent to comply with applicable requirements, 
and any economic benefit accruing to Respondent, as well as such other matters as justice 
may require, including Respondent's ability to pay, EPA proposes that Respondent be 
assessed THREE THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED DOLLARS ($3,800) as the civil 
penalty for the violation alleged herein. The proposed penalty was calculated in 
accordance with the "June 2003 RCRA Civil Penalty Policy." Under the penalty policy, 
EPA uses a penalty assessment matrix to determine a gravity-based penalty. That penalty 

amount is then adjusted to take into account multi-day violations, for case-specific 
circumstances, and for the economic benefit gained from non-compliance, where 
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appropriate. The penalty amount has bcen adjusted, in accordance with the RCRA 
penalty policy, for Respondent's ability to pay. 

E. 	 ADMISSIONS AND WAIVE RS OF RIGHTS 

21. 	 For the purposes of this proceeding, Respondent admits to the jurisdictional allegations 
set forth in Section B of this CAIFO. Respondent consents to and agrees not to contest 
EPA's jurisdiction and authority to enter into and issue this CAlEO and to enforce its 
terms. Further, Respondent will not contest EPA's jurisdiction and authority to compel 
compliance with this CAIFO in any enforcement proceedings, either administrative or 
judicial, or to impose sanctions for violations of this CAIFO. 

22. 	 Respondent neither admits nor denies any allegations of fact or law set forth in Section C 

of this CAlEO. Respondent hereby waives any rights Respondent may have to contest 
the allegations set forth in this CAIFO, waives any rights Respondent may have to a 

hearing on any issue relating to the factual allegations or legal conclusions set forth in 
this CAlFO, including without limitation a hearing pursuant to Section 3008(b) of RCRA, 

42 U.S.c. 6928(b), and hereby consents lo the issuance of this CAIFO withoutI 

adjudication. In addition, Respondent hereby waives any rights Respondent may have to 

appeal the Final Order attached to this Consent Agreement and made part of this CAIFO. 

F. 	 PARTIES BOUND 

23. 	 This CAiFO shall apply to and be binding upon Respondent and its agents, successors 
and assigns, until such time as the civil penalty required under Seclions D and G has been 
paid in accordance with Section G, and any delays in performance andlor stipulated 
penalties have been resolved. At such time as those matters are concluded, this CA/FO 

sba Il term i nate and constitute full settlement of the vio lations alleged herein. 

24. 	 No change in ownership or corporate, partnership or legal status relating to the Facility 

will in any way alter Respondent's obligations and responsibilities undcr this CAIFO. 

25. 	 The undersigned representative of Respondent hereby certifies that he or she is fully 
authorized by Respondent to enter into this CAIFO, to execute and to legally bind 

Respondent to it. 

G. 	 PAYMENT OE CIVIL PENALTY 

26. 	 Respondent consents to the assessment of and agrees to pay a civil penalty of THREE 
THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED DOLLARS ($3,800) in full settlement of the federal 

civil penalty claims set forth in this CA/FO. 

27. 	 Respondent shall submit payment of the penalty in two installments. A total of THREE 

DOLLARS AND TWELVE CENTS ($3.12) will be assessed to account for payment 
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a total payment of THREE EIGHT HUNDRED 
AND TWELVE CENTS Respondent shall pay 

THOUSAND HUNDRED DOLLARS ($1.900) within thirty (30) days of the 
Effective Date of this CAIFO. Respondent shall pay the remaining half of the civil 
penalty, THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED DOLLARS AND TWELVE 
CENTS ($1 .1 within sixty (60) days of tbe 
Effective of this CAIFO is the date the Final 

as filed with the Regional 
the Respondent's name 

be made by payable to 

Protection Agency 

Cincinnati Center 
PO Box 
St. Louis, MO 197-9000 

U.S. Bank 
1005 

Sl. Louis, MO 101 

Contact: (314-418-4087) 


Alternatively, payment may be made by electronic transfer as provided below: 

transfers must be sent directly to the Reserve Bank in 
information: 

York 

Account I 
SWIFT . FRNYUS33 
33 Liberty 
New York NY I 
Field 4200 of the Fedwire message should read: 
"0680 l0727 Protection Agency" 

(ACH) for 
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US Treasury REX / Cashlink ACH Receiver 

ABA: 051036706 

Account Number: 310006, Environmental Protection Agency 

CIX Fonnal Transaction Code 22 - checking 


Physical location of US Treasury facility: 

5700 Rivertech Court 

Riverdale MD 20737 

Contact: John Schmid (202-874-7026) 


On Line Payment: Tbis payment option can be accessed at: 

hltps://www.pay.gov/paygov 

A copy of each check, or nOlification that the payment has been made by one of the other 
methods listed above, including proof of the date payment was made, shall be sent with a 
transmittal Jetter, indicating Respondent's name, the case tille, and docket number, to both: 

Bryan Goodwin 

Regional Hearing Clerk (ORC-I) 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency - Region 9 

75 Hawthorne Street 

San Francisco, CA 94105 


and 

James Polek (WST-3) 

Waste Management Division 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency - Region 9 


75 Hawthorne Street 

San Francisco, CA 94105 


28. 	 In accordance with the Debt Collection Act of 1982 and U.S. Treasury directive (TFRM 
6-8000), each payment must be received by the due date set fOlib in this CAiFO to avoid 
additional charges. rfpayment is not received by Ihe due date, interest will accrue from 
the Effeclive Date of this CAiFO at the current rate published by the United States 
Treasury as described at 40 C.F.R. ' 13.11. A late penalty charge of $15.00 will be 
imposed after thirly (30) calendar days with an additional $15.00 charge for each 
subsequent 30-day period. A 6% per annum penalty will further apply on any principal 
amount not paid within ninety (90) calendar days of its due date. Respondent further wil! 
be liable for stipulated penalties as set forth' below for any payment nol received by iis 
due dale. 
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H. 	 DELAY IN PERFORMANCE/STIPULATED PENALTIES 

29. 	 In the event Respondent fails to meet any requirement set forth in this CNFO, 
Respondent shall pay stipulated penalties as set forth below: 

For failure to submit a payment to EPA by the time required in this CNFO: ONE 
HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100) per day for the first to fifteenth day of delay, FIVE 
HUNDRED DOLLARS ($500) per day for the sixteenth to thirtieth day of delay, and 
ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000) per day for each day of delay thereafter. 

30. 	 All penalties owed to EPA under this Section shall be due within thirty (30) days of 
receipt of a notification of noncompliance. Sueh notification shall describe the 

noncompliance and shall indicate the amount of penalties due. Interest at the current rate 

published by the United States Treasury, as described at 40 C.F.R. '13. J I, shall begin to 
accme on the unpaid balance at the end of the thirty-day period. 

31. 	 Ali penalties shall be made remitted as described in Paragraph 27. 

32. 	 The payment of stipulated penalties shall not alter in any way Respondcnt=s obligation 
to complete the performance required hereunder. 

33. 	 The stipulated peoalties set fortb in this Section do not preclude EPA from pursuing any 

other remedies or sanctions which may be available to EPA by reason of Respondent=s 
failure to comply with any of the requirements of this CNFO. 

r. 	 RESERVATION OF RIGHTS 

34. 	 EPA hereby reserves all of its statutory and regulatory powers, authorities, rights and 
remedies, both legal and equitable, including the right to require that Respondent perform 
tasks in addition to those required by this CAIFO. EPA further reserves all of its statutory 

and regulatory powers, authorities, rights and remedies, both legal and equitable, which 

may pertain to Respondent's failure to compJy with any of the requirements of this CN 
FO, including without limitation, the assessment of penalties under Section 3008(c) of 

RCRA, 42 U.S.C. '6928(c). This CA/FO shall not be construed as a covenant not to sue, 
release, waiver or limitation of any rights, remedies, powers or authorities, civil or 

criminal, which EPA has under RCRA, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
Compensation and Liabil i ty Aet of 1980, as amended ("CERCLA"), or any other 
statutory, regulatory or common law enforcement authority of the United States. 

35. 	 Compliance by Respondent with the terms of this CA/FO shall not relieve Respondent of 
its obligations to comply with RCRA or any other applicable local, State or federal laws 
and regulations. 
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36. 	 The entry of this CNFO and Respondent's consent to comply shall not limit or otherwise 
preclude EPA [rom taking additional enforcement actions should EPA determine that such 
actions are warranted except as they relate to Respondent's liability for federal civil 
penalties for the specific alleged violations and facts as set forth in Section C of this CAl 
FO. 

37. 	 This CAJFO is not intended to be nor shall it be construed as a permit. This CAJFO does 
not relieve Respondent of any obligation to obtain and comply with any local, State or 
federal permits. 

J. 	 OTHER CLAIMS 

38. 	 Nothing in this CAJFO shall constitute or be construed as a release from any other claim, 
cause of action or demand in law or equity by or against any person, firm, partnership, 
entity or corporation for any liability it may have arising out of or relating in any way to 
the generation, storage, treatment, handling, transportation, release, or disposal of any 
hazardous constituents, hnzardous substances, hazardous wastes, pollutants, or 
contaminants found at, taken to, or taken from the Facility. 

K. 	 MISCELLANEOUS 

39. 	 This CAJFO may be amended or modified only by written agreement executed by both 
EPA and Respondent. 

40. 	 The headings in this CAJFO are for convenience of reference only and shall not affect 
interpretation of this CA!FO. 

41. 	 The E.ffecti ve Date 0 f this CAiFO is the date the Final Order, signed by the Regional 
Judicial Officer, as filed by the Regional Hearing Clerk. 
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\ I-.....:...-------::. 

IT IS SO AGR.E.BD. 

J~·Soott,. Director 
Wll$te Management Division 
u.s. fin~~AS=r:y. Region 9 
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FINALORDER 


IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that this Consent Agreement and Final Order pursuant to 40 C.F.R. 

Sections 22.13 and 22.18 (U.S. EPA Docket No. RCRA-9-20 11- 00 \~ ) be entered and that 
} 

TXT Technology, Inc. pay a civil penalty of THREE THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED 

DOLLARS ($3,800) as set out in Section G of the Consent Agreement. 

This Final Order shall be effective upon filing by the Regional Hearing Clerk. 

Date 

, 

Steven Jawgiel 

Regional Judicial Officer I 

United States Environmental Protection Agency, 

Region 9 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 


I certify that the original and one copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order 

was hand delivered to: 

Michael Hinger1y, ORC-3 
United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region IX 
75 Hawthorne Street 
San Francisco, California 94105 

and that a true and correct copy of the Consent Agreemenl and Final Order was placed in the 

United States Mail, ccltified mail, relUm receipt requested, addressed to the following: 

Mr. Tony Teng 
TXT Technologies, Inc. 
15046 E. Nelson Ave., #20 
City of Industry, CA 917448 

CERTIFIED MAIL #: 7010-2780-0000-5246-7492 

Dated: -q-'-f!-~--'-{I--,-ll__ BY~W~ 
Brya! K. GoodwJI1 
Regional Hearing Clerk 
Office of Regional Counsel, Region IX 



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION IX 


75 Hawthorne Street 

San Francisco, CA 94105 


CERTIFIED MAIL NO: 7010-2780-0000-5246-7492 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

SEP 2 1 2011 
Mr. Tony Teng 
TXT Technologies, Inc. 
15046 E. Nelson Ave., #20 
City of Industry, CA 917448 

Re: 	 In the maHer of TXT Technologies, Inc. 

Dear Mr. Teng: 

Enclosed is a copy of the fully executed Consent Agreement and Final Order ("eAIFO") that 
contains the terms of the settlement that TXT Technologies, Inc. ("TXT") reached with the United 
States Env ironmental Protection Agency CU.S. EPA"). 

This CAfFO sets out the terms for resolution of the Resource Conservation and RecoverY'Act 
(RCRA) administrative civil penalty action against TXT for alleged violations at the TXT facility 
in City of Industry, California. As described in the teons of the enclosed CAJFO, payment by 
TXT of the penalty identified in Section G of the enclosed CAIFO is necessary to conclude this 
matter. 

TXT's full compliance with the payment tenns of this CAIFO will close (his case. If you have 
any questions regarding the RCRA requirements and regulations governing your operations, or 
the rules which govern the proceedings terminated by the enclosed document, please contact 
James Polek of my staff at (415) 972-3185, or Michael Hingerty, in the Office of Regional 
Counsel, at (415) 972-3927 . 

Sincerely. M-­
Je~irecLor 
Waste Management Division 

Enclosures 

cc: 	 Michael Hingerty, EPA ORC-3 
James Polek, EPA WST-3 


